
Agenda subject to change prior to meeting 

- Discussio

CITY OF AUBURN 
MAYOR and CITY COUNCIL 

April 10, 2025 
6:00 PM 

Council Chambers 
1 Auburn Way 

Auburn, GA 30011 

INVOCATION 

PLEDGE 

REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 

PUBLIC HEARING 

1. Rezoning of 100 Lyle Road and 0 Main Street - Sarah McQuade

CITIZEN COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 

NEW BUSINESS 

2. Consent Agenda
a. Council Business Meeting Minutes- March 13, 2025
b. Council Special Called Meeting Minutes- March 13, 2025
c. Council Special Called Meeting Minutes- March 27, 2025
d. Council Workshop Meeting Minutes- March 27, 2025
e. Council Member Appointment to RGS Downtown Development Advisory Board
f. Safe Digging Month
g. 6th Street Dog Park Conceptual Plan
h. College Street Extension
i. Change Order for Water Treatment Plant

VOTING ITEMS 

3. Rezoning of 100 Lyle Road and 0 Main Street- Sarah McQuade

CITIZEN COMMENTS 

ADJOURNMENT 

MAYOR 
Richard E. Roquemore 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel III 

Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 



TO: Mayor and Council 

FROM:  Sarah McQuade 
City Planner  

DATE: April 3, 2025 

PURPOSE:  Planning & Zoning Report 

BACKGROUND:  

This item was presented for informational purposes to Mayor and Council during their 
regularly scheduled meeting scheduled meeting on March 27, 2025. During the 
presentation Mayor and Council posed a number of questions to staff regarding the 
development.    

The following conditions of zoning have been recommended by staff and the Planning 
Commission to be applied to the development if Council finds the development is the in 
best interest of the city and recommends the application for approval: 

1. RZ-24-0000 the previously tabled application of MBC Developers, LLC c/o
Andersen Tate & Carr, to rezone 100 Lyle Road (AU11 148) and 0 Main Street
(AU11 031B), a combined 57.917± acres, from AG – Agricultural district to PUD –
Planned Unit Development district for the purpose of developing the property
with a 188-lot single-family detached subdivision

a. The Planning & Zoning Commission voted to recommend approval of this
item with the following conditions:

1. The site shall be developed in substantial conformance with the
submitted Letter of Intent and Rezoning Exhibit dated March 14,
2025, adopted as part of this rezoning action. However, alterations
necessary to accommodate other conditions specified herein are
permitted as determined by the Community Development Director.
All other alterations are subject to the standards found in Sec.
17.90.140.K.

MAYOR 
Rick E. Roquemore 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel III 

          Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 

Public Hearing &
Voting Item: 3



2. The Developer shall use a variety of architectural techniques to avoid 
the monotonous appearance of identical houses. Such techniques 
may employ among others the use of differing front elevations, 
architectural styles, building exteriors, colors, setbacks or other 
similar techniques to provide a more aesthetically pleasing 
appearance to the subdivision. There shall be no vinyl siding 
permitted. No two (2) adjacent houses shall have front elevations 
which are visually the same; this distinction can be accomplished 
through a combination of color, materials, architectural features, 
and/or building massing. 

3. Compliance with all City of Auburn Municipal Code unless otherwise 
provided within the adopted Rezoning Exhibit dated March 14, 2025, 
and Letter of Intent submitted herein and approved by Mayor & 
Council, including construction and design of all utilities and 
infrastructure. Unless explicitly requested in the Letter of Intent and 
granted relief by Mayor & Council through a formal motion, no 
variances from these standards are permitted.  

4. The development shall provide residential amenities in accordance 
with Sec. 17.90.140.H in addition to the requirements found 
16.24.090. 

5. A mandatory Homeowners Association (HOA) shall be established 
and shall be responsible for maintenance of all common facilities, 
open spaces, recreational areas, and street frontage landscaping. A 
25-foot planted buffer along the Lyle Road frontage shall be 
professionally designed by the developer, shall include decorative 
masonry entrance features, and maintained by the HOA. Landscape 
plans, entrance features, and fencing shall be subject to the review 
and approval of the Community Development Director. 

6. Said HOA shall be formally incorporated and shall include provisions 
for the maintenance of building and grounds, repair, insurance, and 
working capital. Said association must also include declarations and 
by-laws include rules and regulations which shall at a minimum 
regulate and control the following: 

a. All grounds, including recreation areas and common areas. 
b. Stormwater detention infrastructure maintenance. 
c. Fence, wall, and sign maintenance. 

7. Along the Lyle Road project frontage, a 25-foot-wide planted buffer 
shall be provided to screen the rear-facing residential units from 
view; the Community Development Director, at their discretion, may 
permit an encroachment into this buffer to accommodate required 
improvements. The planted landscape buffer is subject to approval by 



the Community Development Director to ensure it provides adequate 
screening of the development.   

8. Natural vegetation shall remain on the property until the issuance of 
a development permit. 

9. Underground utilities shall be provided throughout the development. 
10. Along the Lyle Road project frontage, sidewalks, with a minimum 

width of 5 feet, and streetlights shall be installed and constructed in 
accordance with the sidewalk construction and design standards 
specified in the code of ordinances. 

11. The portion of Lyle Road, along the project frontage, shall be 
upgraded to meet the road construction and design standards 
outlined in the code of ordinances for substandard streets. 

12. Construct a 8-foot tall privacy fence along the full extent of the 
property boundary adjacent to Lyle Hill Farm, LLC. 

13. The final plat shall include a note providing notice to potential 
purchasers that they are buying property adjacent to a working farm 
with sights, sounds, and smells typically associated with agricultural 
uses. 

14. All lot sizes shall conform to the minimum requirements of City Code 
Section 17.90.140(G)(7). 

15. The amenity area shall include the following features, all of which 
shall be completed prior to the issuance of Certificates of Occupancy 
for more than 50% of the units: 

a. Children’s play area greater than 5,000 square feet 
b. Swimming pool with a surface area greater than or equal to 

1,800 square feet 
c. Two pickleball courts, regulation size 
d. Clubhouse greater than or equal to 3,000 square feet in heated 

area. 
e. In the primary common area, a paved walking path with 

pedestrian furnishings shall be provided to create a continuous 
connection between the primary amenity area on the west side 
and the gazebo on the eastern side. The design and layout of 
this open space shall promote accessibility and usability for all 
residents within the community.  

16. The site layout shall be revised to incorporate mid-block pedestrian 
crossings, additional on-street parking, and enhanced streetscape 
design elements throughout the development. These improvements 
shall be aimed at increasing pedestrian safety, walkability, and 
overall connectivity within the development.  



17. Prior to the issuance of any building permit, the owner or developer 
shall record with the Clerk of Superior Court a declaration of 
restrictive covenants providing for a mandatory homeowners’ or 
property owners’ association. The declaration of restrictive covenants 
of the mandatory owners’ association shall include a statement 
limiting the number of leased or rented homes to no more than 
twenty percent (20%) of the total number of units in the 
development. The declaration shall also require owners wishing to 
lease their property to obtain a written permit from the owners’ 
association prior to renting or leasing. 

 
FUNDING:  
N/A 
 





































































































































































Page 1 of 6  

MAYOR 
Rick E. Roquemore 

 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel III 

Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF AUBURN 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

MEETING IN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
March 13, 2025 

6:00 PM 
Council Chambers 

1 Auburn Way 
Auburn, GA 30011 

 
 Present: Mayor:                      Richard Roquemore  
 Council Member:                   Robert L. Vogel  

Council Member:                   Taylor J. Sisk  
Council Member:                   Jamie L. Bradley  
Council Member:                   Joshua Rowan 
 
City Staff in Attendance: Michael Parks, Marc Pharr, Staci Waters, Brooke Haney, Iris Akridge, Chief Hodge 
 
Also in Attendance: Jack Wilson 

Mayor Roquemore called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 
Joseph Cartey gave the Invocation. 
Mayor Roquemore gave the pledge. 
 
 
Council Reports and Announcements 
Mayor Roquemore asked for Council Reports and Announcements. Staci Waters announced the 
change of date in the upcoming Auburn’s Finest Arts and Craft Showcase due to weather, and the Car 
Show both being held on March 22, 2025. Staci Waters also announced the Great American Clean up 
and the Yard sale on March 29th.  Council Member Sisk announced that the CCRPI Scores for 
Auburn Elementary had gone up significantly. He also mentioned that Auburn Elementary School 
is looking for Mentors. Council Member Jamie Bradley stated that the Auburn Elementary 
School Mentoring Program is a great program. She also read a letter from a past citizen entitled 
The Love of Auburn.  
 
Mayor Roquemore announced the need to amend the agenda to add consideration of a resolution 
regarding Downtown Redevelopment. 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to amend the agenda. 
Motion: Made by Council Member Rowan to amend the agenda 
Second: Made by Council Member Sisk 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion. Council Member Vogel asked if Citizen 
Comments could be added for this item. The Council agreed without objection to allow 
comments.   



Page 2 of 6  

Mayor Roquemore asked for a Motion to approve amending the agenda for citizen comments 
and the Resolution regarding Downtown Redevelopment. 
Motion: Made by Council Member Bradley 
Second: by Council Member Vogel 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion, there was none. Votes were taken with all members present 
voting yes. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to open the Public Hearing regarding the PUD Planned Unit 
Development District Ordinance Amendment 
Motion: Made by Council Member Sisk to open the public hearing. 
Second by Council Member Rowan 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion, there was none. Votes were taken with all members present 
voting yes. 
 
Item 1.: Public Hearing regarding the PUD Planned Unit Development District Ordinance Amendment S 
Sarah McQuade: Presented and reported staff and Planning Commission recommendations to approve the 
Ordinance Amendment.   
Mayor Roquemore opened the floor for ten minutes for public comments in favor of the change of the PUD 
Planned Unit Development District Ordinance Amendment.  
Melody Glouton, 1960 Satellite Blvd., Duluth, GA 30096, gave illustrations of lot size and ratios. 
Mayor Roquemore opened the floor for ten minutes for public comments in opposition to the change of the 
Statewide Homestead Exemption. There were none. 
 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to close the Public Hearing. 
Motion: Made by Council Member Bradley to close the public hearing. 
Second: by Council Member Sisk 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion, there was none. Votes were taken with all members present 
voting yes. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Citizen Comments on Agenda Items 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any citizen comments for items on tonight’s agenda. There were none.  
 
Mayor Roquemore asked if there were any items to be removed from the consent agenda. Council Member  
Vogel asked to remove Item 2€ and to table consideration of the Sewer Ordinance to the March 27, 2025 meeting.. 
 
Item 2: Consent Agenda 
             a. Council Business Meeting Minutes- February 27, 2025 
             b. Council Workshop Meeting Minutes- February 13, 2025  
             c. Perry Rainy Center Rental Fees 
             d. Website Partnership Plan  
             e. Sanitary Sewer Capacity Fees Ordinance 
             f. Amend Charter 5.16 Terms of Office 
             g. RZ-24-000 Final Plats FP-2001, FP-2002, FP-2003 
 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to approve the remaining items on the consent agenda and to table 
Item 2(e). 
Motion: Made by Council Member Vogel to approve the remaining items on the consent agenda and to 
table Item 2(e) to the March 27 meeting. 
Second: by Council Member Rowan 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion, there was none. Votes were taken with all members present 



Page 3 of 6  

voting yes. 
 
VOTING ITEMS 
Item 3: PUD-Planned Unit Development District Ordinance Amendment- Sarah McQuade 
Sarah McQuade Presented 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to approve the Planned Unit Development District Ordinance Amendment with 
staff recommended changes. 
Motion: Made by Council Member Rowan approved the PUD Ordinance amendment 
Second: Made by Council Member Sisk 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion, there was none. Votes were taken Council 
Members Rowan and Sisk voting yes and Council Members Vogel and Bradley Voting no. 
Mayor Roquemore Voted Yes. The PUD Ordinance Amendment was adopted and approved 
3-2. 
 
Item 4: Rezoning of 100 Lyle Road and 0 Main Street 
Sarah McQuade Presented and asked to table the Rezoning of 100 Lyle Road and 0 Main Street until April 10, 2025. 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to approve tabling the Rezoning of 100 Lyle Road and 0 Main Street until 
April 10, 2025, Business Meeting. 
Motion: Made by Council Member Vogel approves tabling the Rezoning of 100 Lyle Road and 0 Main Street until 
April 10, 2025, Business Meeting. 
Second: Made by Council Member Bradley 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion, there was none. Votes were taken with all 
members present voting yes. 
 
Item 5: Harmony Grove Cemetery 
Michael Parks Presented 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to approve the donation of the Harmony Grove Cemetery to the City of 
Auburn. 
Motion: Made by Council Member Bradley approves the donation of the Harmony Grove Cemetery to the City of 
Auburn. 
Second: Made by Council Member Sisk 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion, there was none. Votes were taken with all 
members present voting yes. 
 
Item 6: Resolution regarding Downtown Redevelopment 
The City Attorney Presented 
Mayor Roquemore called for citizen comments on the proposed resolution.  Several citizens and interested individuals 
offered comments and asked questions.  
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to approve the Resolution regarding Downtown Redevelopment. 
Motion: Made by Council Member Rowan approves the Resolution regarding Downtown Redevelopment. 
Second: Made by Council Member Sisk 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion, Council members spoke regarding the proposed 
resolution. Votes were taken Council Members Rowan and Sisk voting yes and Council 
Members Vogel and Bradley Voting no. Mayor Roquemore Voted Yes.  
 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any Citizen Comments. There were none. 
 
ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Roquemore called for a motion to adjourn. 
Motion: Made by Council Member Sisk to adjourn. 
Second: By Council Member Rowan. 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion. There was none. Votes were taken with all members present 
voting yes. Meeting adjourned. 
 



Page 4 of 6  

Respectfully submitted,  
Read and approved this ___________ Day of April 2025 
  
Attest: 
 
 
 ___________________________________________________ 
 Mayor Richard E. Roquemore



Page 1 of 3  

MAYOR 
Rick E. Roquemore 

 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel III 

Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF AUBURN 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 
March 13, 2025 

5:00 PM 
Council Chambers 

1 Auburn Way 
Auburn, GA 30011 

 
 Present: Mayor:                      Richard Roquemore  
 Council Member:                   Robert L. Vogel III 

Council Member:                   Taylor J. Sisk  
Council Member:                   Jamie L. Bradley  
Council Member:                   Joshua Rowan 
 
City Staff in Attendance: Michael Parks, Chief Hodge, Staci Waters, Brooke Haney 
Also in Attendance: Jack Wilson 
Mayor Roquemore called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to go into Executive Session for Real Property, Pending Litigation, 
and Personnel Matters.  
 
Motion: Made by Council Member Vogel to go into Executive Session for Real Property, Pending 
Litigation, and Personnel Matters 
Second: By Council Member Rowan  
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion. There was none. Votes were taken with all members present 
voting yes. 
  
After the Executive Session, the City Attorney reported that during Executive Session the Council met to 
discuss Real Property, Pending Litigation, and Personnel Matters as allowed by the Open Meetings Act. 
There were no votes taken and no evidence received in the Executive Session. The original affidavit and 
resolution have been signed and delivered to the staff to be included within the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Mayor Roquemore Adjourned the meeting. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Read and approved this ___________ Day of April 2025 
  
Attest: 
 
 
 ___________________________________________________ 
 Mayor Richard E. Roquemore



Page 1 of 3  

MAYOR 
Rick E. Roquemore 

 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel III 

Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF AUBURN 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL 

SPECIAL CALLED MEETING 
March 27, 2025 

5:00 PM 
Council Chambers 

1 Auburn Way 
Auburn, GA 30011 

 
 Present: Mayor:                      Richard Roquemore  
 Council Member:                   Robert L. Vogel III 

Council Member:                   Taylor J. Sisk  
Council Member:                   Jamie L. Bradley  
Council Member:                   Joshua Rowan 
 
City Staff in Attendance: Michael Parks, Chief Hodge, Staci Waters, Brooke Haney 
Also in Attendance: Jack Wilson 
Mayor Roquemore called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm. 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to go into Executive Session for Pending Litigation and Personnel 
Matters.  
 
Motion: Made by Council Member Sisk to go into Executive Session for Pending Litigation and Personnel 
Matters 
Second: By Council Member Rowan  
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion. There was none. Votes were taken with all members present 
voting yes. 
  
After the Executive Session, the City Attorney reported that during Executive Session the Council met to 
discuss Pending Litigation and Personnel Matters as allowed by the Open Meetings Act. There were no votes 
taken and no evidence received in the Executive Session. The original affidavit and resolution have been 
signed and delivered to the staff to be included within the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Mayor Roquemore Adjourned the meeting. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
Read and approved this ___________ Day of April 2025 
  
Attest: 
 
 
 ___________________________________________________ 
 Mayor Richard E. Roquemore



MAYOR                                                          CITY COUNCIL 
Rick E. Roquemore                               Robert L. Vogel III 

Taylor J. Sisk 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR                             Jamie l. Bradley 
Michael Parks                                                  Joshua Rowan 

 
 

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP MEETING 
March 27, 2025 

6:00 PM 
Council Chambers  

1 Auburn Way 
Auburn, GA 30011 

 
             Present: Mayor:  Richard Roquemore  
               Council Member:   Robert L. Vogel III 
               Council Member:   Taylor J. Sisk 
               Council Member:  Jamie L. Bradley 
                          Council Member: Joshua Rowan 
                           

 
City Staff in Attendance: Michael Parks, Staci Waters, Brooke Haney, Marc Pharr, Iris Akridge, 
Chief Hodge 
Also in Attendance: Jack Wilson, Sarah McQuade, Jim Aton 
 
Mayor Roquemore called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 
 
WORKSHOP ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
 
Council Reports and Announcements 
Mayor Roquemore asked for Council Reports and Announcements. 
Staci Waters announced the upcoming Yard Sale March 29 and Great American Clean up on 
March 28 & 29th.   
Mayor Roquemore asked to move citizen comments between agenda items 6&7. 
 
Item 1: Council Member Appointment to RGS Downtown Development 
Placed on April 10, 2025, Council Business Agenda 
Item 2: Rezoning of 100 Lyle Road and 0 Main Street 
Sarah McQuade Presented 
Council Member Rowan added additional conditions. 
Placed on April 10, 2025, Council Business Agenda 



Item 3: Safe Digging Month 
Iris Akridge Presented 
Placed on April 10, 2025, Council Business Agenda 
Item 4: 6th Street Dog Park Conceptual Plan 
Michel Parks Presented 
Placed on April 10, 2025, Council Business Agenda 
Item 5: College Street Extension 
Michael Parks Presented 
Placed on April 10, 2025, Council Business Agenda 
Item 6: Change of Order for Water Treatment Plant 
Jim Aton Presented 
Placed on April 10, 2025, Council Business Agenda 

Mayor Roquemore asked for Citizen Comments. 
Rob Yoe, 1531 Wynfield Dr., Commented on Rezoning of 100 Lyle Road and 0 Main Street. 

VOTING ITEMS 
Item 7: Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure Fee Ordinance 
Michael Parks Presented 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to approve the Sanitary Sewer Infrastructure Fee 
Ordinance. 
Motion: Made by Council Member Rowan 
Second: by Council Member Sisk 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion, there was none. Votes were taken with all 
members present voting yes.  

Item 2: Planning Fee Schedule Update 
Michael Parks Presented 
Mayor Roquemore asked for a motion to approve the Planning Fee Schedule Update. 
Motion: Made by Council Member Vogel 
Second: by Council Member Bradley 
Mayor Roquemore asked for any discussion, there was none. Votes were taken with all 
members present voting yes.  

Mayor Roquemore asked if there were any citizen comments. There were none. 

Respectfully submitted, 
Read and approved this  Day of April 2025 Attest: 

Mayor Richard E. Roquemore



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: e 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Council 
 
FROM:   Jack Wilson  
  City Attorney  
 
DATE: April 3, 2025 
 
 
PURPOSE: To elect a Council representative to serve on the RGS Development 
Architectural Review Committee. 
 
 
BACKGROUND: The Downtown Development Authority has signed an 
agreement with RGS Development to revitalize the downtown area.  Prior to 
commencing construction an Architectural Review Committee, consisting of 
three members appointed by RGS, Mayor of Auburn, one City of Auburn council 
member, the chair of the DDA, and the architect engaged by RGS, which will 
review and approve the plans for the project. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: To elect Councilman Josh Rowan to serve on the 
Architectural Review Committee  
 
 
FUNDING: N/A 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: N/A 

MAYOR 
Rick E. Roquemore 
 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR   
Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel III 

                 Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 
 



AGENDA ITEM NO:   ____f________ 

TO:  

FROM:   

DATE:  

MAYOR & COUNCIL 

Iris Akridge – Public Works Director 

April 4, 2025 

PURPOSE: Proclamation #01-025 in observance of Safe Digging Month April 2025 

BACKGROUND:  The City of Auburn, in collaboration with Barrow County UCC and Georgia 811, is 
promoting National Safe Digging Month every April to mark the start of peak digging season. This 
initiative aims to raise awareness among contractors and homeowners about the importance of the 
national 811 notification system. 

By dialing 811, residents of Auburn can inform local utility operators of their digging plans, ensuring 
that underground utilities are located before any project begins. This system is crucial for preventing 
damage to underground utilities and ensuring the safety of Auburn's residents. 

FUNDING: N/A 

RECOMMENDATION:  To approve Proclamation #01-025 recognizing April 2025 as Safe Digging Month. 

MAYOR 
Richard E. Roquemore 

 CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
 Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel, III 

Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 



 
Barrow County UCC  

and Georgia 811 
4/1/25 
 
Office of the Mayor of Auburn 
1 Auburn Way 
P.O. Box 1059 
Auburn, GA  30011 
 
Re: National Safe Digging Month 
 

The Barrow Utility Coordinating Committee (UCC) has partnered with Georgia 811 for many years to promote National 
Safe Digging Month each April, coinciding with the start of peak digging season. This initiative aims to increase 
awareness among contractors and homeowners about the national 811 notification system. By contacting 811, 
homeowners are connected to Georgia 811, which then notifies the relevant utility companies of the intent to dig. 
Professional locators are dispatched to mark the approximate locations of underground lines with flags or spray paint. 
Once these lines are accurately marked, digging can safely commence around them. The 811-notification system is 
crucial for preventing damage to underground utilities and ensuring the safety of Auburn residents. 

Barrow UCC values the ongoing support of the City of Auburn in local utility coordination efforts and is requesting 
Mayor Richard E. Roquemore to publicly proclaim April 2025 as Safe Digging Month and emphasize the importance of 
contacting 811 before digging. 

Here are some ways Mayor Roquemore can show support for Safe Digging Month: 

• Issue an official proclamation of Auburn Safe Digging Month from the Office of the Mayor.  

• Post Auburn Safe Digging Month messages on the City of Auburn's social media sites. Georgia 811 has 
prepared social media messages available on its Safe Digging Month page. 

• Record a public service announcement to air on local radio stations or social media during Safe Digging 
Month. 

We appreciate your support for this initiative. For more information on National Safe Digging Month, visit 
www.Georgia811.com or contact me directly. 

 
Regards, 
 
 
Samantha McDaniel 
Barrow UCC Representative 
 

 

 



PROCLAMATION NO. 01-025 

WHEREAS, 

Thousands of times each year, the underground infrastructure in Georgia is damaged by 
those who do not have underground lines located prior to digging, resulting in service 
interruption, environmental damage, and threat to public safety, and;  

WHEREAS, 

In 2005, the Federal Communications Commission designated 811 to provide contractors 
and homeowners with a simple number to contact utility operators to request the location of 
underground lines at the intended dig site, and; 

WHEREAS, 

The Barrow County Utility Coordinating Committee, a stakeholder-driven organization 
dedicated to the prevention of damage to underground utilities in Georgia, promotes the 
National 811 Notification System to reduce these damages, and; 

WHEREAS, 

Damage prevention is a shared responsibility; by using safe digging practices, the 
contractors and homeowners of the City of Auburn can save time, money and help keep our 
infrastructure safe and connected, and; 

THEREFORE, 

I do hereby proclaim, on behalf of the City of Auburn, the month of April 2025 as: 

City of Auburn Safe Digging Month 
And encourage contractors and homeowners throughout the City of Auburn to always call 811 
before digging.  Safe digging is no accident!!  

_____________________________________                        _______________________________________                
 Richard E. Roquemore, Mayor    Robert L. Vogel III, Council Member 

_____________________________________  ______________________________________
 Taylor J. Sisk, Council Member    Jamie L. Bradley, Council Member 

_____________________________________ 
Joshua Rowan, Council Member 

Attest: 

_____________________________________ 
    Michael E. Parks, City Admin. 
 



AGENDA ITEM: g 

TO: 

FROM:  

DATE: 

Mayor and Council 

Michael Parks 
City Administrator 

April 4, 2025 

PURPOSE: The proposed Park located on 6th Street was approved by council on 
April 7, 2016. Staff would like to discuss moving forward with this project. 

BACKGROUND: The proposed Park will be constructed off 6th Street across 
from the rear entrance to Auburn Elementary.  
 The new neighborhood (pocket) park concept will include and/or address the 
following:  

• Dog park: fenced in areas for large and small dogs.
• Park entry access from 6th Street:

o Create a loop drive for parents pick up/drop off to adjacent
Elementary School

o Integrate entry with parking area options for park users.
o Provide landscape design for entry, to include location for park

sign.
• Recommendations for prefabricated Picnic Pavilion and/or other

prefabricated park structures.
• Walking trail(s) – multi-use.
• Site furnishings: Benches, Picnic Tables, Water Fountain, Pet Waste

Stations, Trash and/or Recycling Receptacles, Pedestrian Lighting, etc.
• General Landscape improvements for site.

RECOMMENDATION: To Approve CPL Design presented by staff. 

FUNDING: SPLOST 

ATTACHMENTS: 6th Street Park Design Concepts by Bowman, CPL and Lose 
Design Spaces for Life 

MAYOR 
Rick E. Roquemore 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel III 

          Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 



     

            

February 28, 2025 
 
Michael Parks, City Administrator 
City of Auburn 
1 Auburn Way 
Auburn, Georgia 30011  
mparks@cityofauburn-ga.org 
 
Re:  New Park at 6th Concept Design Proposal  
 
Dear Mr. Michael Parks, 
 
CPL Architecture, Engineering, and Planning is pleased to submit this proposal for 
professional design services for the conceptual design plan for a neighborhood (“pocket”) 
park at 6th Street (Parcel ID AU11 059) with amenities to include a dog park, park entry 
(vehicular loop) with parking, signage at 6th street, and other park elements listed below to 
be considered for the site plan.      
 
 
Program of Park Concept 
 
The new neighborhood (pocket) park concept will include and/or address the following:  

• Dog park: fenced in areas for large and small dogs. 
• Park entry access from 6th Street: 

o Create a loop drive for parent pick up/drop off to adjacent Elementary School 
o Integrate entry with parking area options for park users.  
o Provide landscape design for entry, to include location for park sign. 

• Recommendations for a prefabricated Picnic Pavilion and/or other prefabricated 
park structures. 

• Walking trail(s) – Multi-use. 
• Site furnishings: Benches, Picnic Tables, Water Fountain, Pet Waste Stations, Trash 

and/or Recycling Receptacles, Pedestrian Lighting, etc. 
• General Landscape improvements for site. 

 
Scope of Work & Deliverables 
 
Professional Consultant Services will be provided by CPL in accordance with a developed 
scope of services. The following workflow process represents the Scope of Work needed to 
develop a neighborhood park concept plan. Detailed Project understandings, assumptions, 
and exclusions are considered as part of the final scope.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



Park Conceptual Design Services Proposal 
 City of Auburn 

February 28, 2025 
Page 2 of 7 

Phase 1 – Design Development Drawings 
1. Pre-design – Data collection and Research (site visit time included). 

 
2. Base Sheet Preparation – CPL will use an existing survey, GIS, aerial photography, 

and/or a field generated data of current conditions gathered during the Pre-design 
site visit to generate a base map to complete proposed park concept designs. 
 

3. Project Kick-off Meeting – Review of Constraints & Program (Visioning). Meeting time 
is included to review the base map and program elements. 
 

4. Preliminary Site Design – Design team to prepare one (1) hand drawn, black and 
white concept plan to illustrate potential layout and arrangement of program 
elements. 
 

5. Review Meeting of Preliminary Concept Design – CPL design team to meet with City 
Officials prior to completing the final concept design and estimate of probable costs. 

a. On-site review of concept is recommended. 
 

6. Final Concept Plan – Based upon the direction established and any adjustments 
required following the review of the preliminary concept, a final rendered plan with 
labels shall be provided. As part of advancing the design, precedent imagery will be 
provided for recommended furnishings and proposed site structures. Final Concept 
Plan Drawing(s) will clearly indicate the following program elements: 

a. Landscaped Areas and types of plantings. 
b. Pavement areas and types of materials. 
c. Types and location of seating. 
d. Types and location of lighting. 
e. Types and location of park structures. 
f. Conceptual grades and drainage. 

 
7. Estimate of Probable Costs. 

  
8. Review of Final Concept Plan / Community Meeting Presentation (Auburn, Ga). 

a. Final concept drawing with labels, image board(s), and estimate of probable 
costs will be provided to the Client for final review and comment. Time has 
been allocated in this task for a meeting with Client and minor adjustments 
to the final concept plan as directed by the Client. 
 

Phase 2 – Construction Documents (TBD) 
Based upon final approval of the Concept Design completed in Phase 1, the project’s budget 
and any adjustments in the scope or quality of the project directed at this time, CPL will 
prepare Construction Documents (CDs). CDs will consist of drawings and specifications, 
providing information necessary for final pricing and installation of site work.   
 

1. Site Survey – A topographic survey of the park parcel and adjacent areas along 6th 
Street is required prior to start of Construction Drawings, to be provided by the City 
of Auburn. 
 

2. Construction Documents, Permitting, Bidding, and Construction Administration 
(TBD). 

 



Park Conceptual Design Services Proposal 
 City of Auburn 

February 28, 2025 
Page 3 of 7 

Fee Proposal 
 
CPL will perform the Phase 1 scope of work outlined above for the lump sum amount 
specified below. Any additional services beyond this scope may be provided on an hourly 
basis, in accordance with the hourly rates listed in Appendix ‘B’. Our fees for the scope are as 
follows: 
  
Phase 1 Design – Development Drawings: 

1. Pre-design – Data Collection (Site Visit)   $  1,020.00   
2. Base Sheet Preparation     $       855.00 
3. Project Kick-off Meeting     $      510.00  
4. Preliminary Site Design Concepts (2 – 3 Concepts)  $      2,220.00 
5. Review of Preliminary Concepts (Meeting)   $     675.00 
6. Final Concept Plan (Rendering)     $  2,040.00 
7. Estimate of Probable Costs     $    1,590.00 
8. Review of Final Concept Plan /    $        765.00 

Community Meeting Presentation 
Budget Estimate for mileage, plots, copies, etc.  $     200.00                                                                   
Subtotal for Phase 1:                 $    9,875.00 

 
Phase 2 – Construction Documents:  

1. Topographical Survey (by Others)                 
2. Construction Documents, Permitting, Bidding,  $  TBD  

and Construction Administration 
 
CPL will not exceed the estimated design budget without authorization from the Client. 
Direct expenses will be billed at cost plus 15%. Direct expenses include, but are not limited 
to, reproduction cost, courier services, mileage, etc.  
 
 
ASSUMPTIONS & CONCLUSIONS 
 

• Property is owned by the City of Auburn. 
• Client (City of Auburn) to provide CAD drawing files of existing survey. 
• Fee does not include construction documents, permitting, bidding, or 

construction administration services. 
• Permitting and permit related review fees are not included in the scope. 
• A topographical survey of the entire site will be provided by the City prior to 

Phase 2 – Construction Documents. 
• Preliminary site plans will be provided in freehand sketch. 
• The existing pump station on site is excluded from the park design and will 

not be modified for the conceptual site plan. 
• Geotechnical borings are not in this contract. 
• There is no need for wetland delineation. 
• Number of meetings are limited to those specified in the scope of work. 
• Unsuitable soil or rock are not anticipated.  
• No environmental or archeological studies are needed. 
• Client will provide all existing data and access to data for the design team. 



Park Conceptual Design Services Proposal 
 City of Auburn 

February 28, 2025 
Page 4 of 7 

• No public involvement is anticipated.  
• There are no state waters within 200 feet of the proposed construction zone.  
• Water, power, and sewer are assumed to be available to the site. 
• No irrigation design is anticipated at this time. 
• Pavilions and playgrounds will be prefabricated selections if Client decides to 

include in park.  
• No architectural drawings are anticipated in this fee. 

 
 
 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 
 
This agreement shall be administered in accordance with the Terms and Conditions 
listed in Appendix "A" attached hereto. 

This document together with the exhibits and/or appendices identified herein 
constitutes the entire understanding between the City of Auburn City, Georgia and 
CPL with respect to the work to be performed by CPL for the benefit of the City of 
Auburn City, Georgia and may only be modified in writing signed by both parties. Please 
sign and return the enclosed copy of this letter if this document satisfactorily sets forth 
the understanding of the arrangement between the City of Auburn City, Georgia and 
CPL. Receipt of the signed agreement will serve as our notice to proceed. This Contract 
will be open for acceptance for sixty days from the date of this letter. 
 
We look forward to working with you on this project. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
 
 

Rebecca Keefer, AICP 
Principal 
 
 
 
 

IN WITNESS OF THE FOREGOING, the Parties have set their hands and sealed the day 
and year first written above. 
 
CITY OF AUBURN: 
 
 
BY: _____________________________________ ATTEST: __________________________________ 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 



Park Conceptual Design Services Proposal 
 City of Auburn 

February 28, 2025 
Page 5 of 7 

APPENDIX ‘A’  
TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. Clark Patterson Lee (hereinafter called "CPL") shall perform the services defined in this Letter 
Agreement and Client agrees to pay CPL for said services as set forth below. 

2. All documents including Drawings and Specifications prepared by CPL are instruments of service 
in respect to the Project. They are not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by Client or 
others on extensions of the Project or on any other project. Any reuse without written verification 
or adaptation by CPL for the specific purpose intended will be at Clients sole risk and without 
liability or legal exposure to CPL. Any such verification or adaptation will entitle CPL to further 
compensation at rates to be agreed upon by Client and CPL. 

3. Client agrees to additionally compensate CPL for services resulting from significant changes in 
general scope of Project, for revising previously accepted reports, studies, design documents, 
or Contract Documents, or for delays caused by others rather than CPL. 
 

4. The hourly rates outlined in this contract are subject to an annual increase of up to 5 percent. This 
adjustment will take effect at the beginning of the calendar year. 

5. Construction cost estimates prepared by CPL represents CPL's best judgment as professionals 
familiar with the construction industry. It is recognized, however, that CPL has no control over 
cost of labor, materials, or equipment, over contractors' methods of determining bid prices, or 
over competitive bidding or market conditions. CPL cannot and does not guarantee that 
proposals, bids, or actual construction costs will not vary from cost estimates prepared by CPL. 

 
6. If requested by Client or if required by the scope of services of the Agreement, CPL shall visit 

the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction to become generally familiar with 
the progress and quality of the work and to determine in general if the work is proceeding in 
accordance with the Contract Documents. However, CPL shall not be required to make 
exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the work. CPL 
shall not have control or charge of and shall not be responsible for construction means, 
methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in 
connection with the Work, for the acts or omissions of the contractor, subcontractors, or any other 
persons performing any of the work, or for the failure of any of them to carry out the work in 
accordance with the Contract Documents. 

 
7. Surveying will be provided as stated in the Agreement. Surveying provided on an hourly basis 

will be charged with a 4-hour minimum at the hourly rates in effect at the time the service is 
performed. Replacement of survey markers resulting from contractor disturbance or vandalism 
will be accomplished on an hourly basis. 

 
8. The cost of permits, fees, toll telephone calls, courier service, reproduction of reports, Drawings, 

and Specifications, transportation in connection with the Project, and other out of pocket 
expenses will be reimbursed to CPL by Client at cost plus 15%. 

9. CPL shall submit monthly statements for services rendered and for reimbursable expenses 
incurred. Statements will be based upon CPL's time of billing. Payment is due upon receipt of 
CPL's Statement. If Client fails to make any payment due CPL for services and expenses within 30 
days after the date of CPL's statement therefore, the amounts due CPL shall include a charge at 
the rate of 1.5% per month (18% per annum), or portion thereof, from said 30th day, and, in 
addition, CPL may, after giving 7 days' written notice to Client, suspend services under this 
Agreement until CPL has been paid in full all amounts due CPL are collected through an 
attorney or collection agency, Client shall pay all fees and costs of collection. 

10. This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon 7 days' written notice should the 
other party fail substantially to perform in accordance with its terms through no fault to the 
party initiating termination, or in the event Project is cancelled. In the event of termination, 
CPL shall be paid the compensation plus Reimbursable Expenses due for services performed to 
termination date. 

 
11.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State Georgia. Liability shall be limited to 

amount of the fees paid for professional services. 
 



Park Conceptual Design Services Proposal 
 City of Auburn 

February 28, 2025 
Page 6 of 7 

12. The services to be performed by CPL under this Agreement are intended solely for the benefit of 
the Client. Nothing contained herein shall confer any rights upon or create any duties on the part 
of CPL toward any persons not a party to this Agreement including, but not limited to, any 
contractor, subcontractor, supplier, or the agents, officers, employees, insurers, or sureties of any of 
them. 

 
13. Client and CPL each binds himself and his partners, successors, executors, administrators, and 

assigns to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, successors, executors, 
administrators, and assigns of such other party, in respect to all covenants of this Agreement. 
Neither Client nor CPL shall assign, sublet, or transfer his interest in this Agreement without the 
written consent of the other; however, CPL may employ others to assist in the carrying out of 
duties under this Agreement. 

 
14. Client and CPL each binds himself and his partners, successors, executors, administrators, and 

assigns to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, successors, executors, 
administrators, and assigns of such other party, in respect to all covenants of this Agreement. 
Neither Client nor CPL shall assign, sublet, or transfer his interest in this Agreement without the 
written consent of the other; however, CPL may employ others to assist in the carrying out of 
duties under this Agreement. 

 
15. In the event the Client, the Client's contractors or subcontractors, or anyone for whom the Client is 

legally liable makes or permits to be made any changes to any reports, plans, specifications or 
other construction documents, including electronic files, prepared by CPL without obtaining CPL's 
prior written consent, the Client shall assume full responsibility for the results of such changes. 
Therefore, the Client agrees to waive any claim against CPL and to release CPL from any liability 
arising directly or indirectly from such changes. In addition, the Client agrees, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless CPL from any damages, liabilities or costs, 
including reasonable attorneys' fees and costs of defense, arising from such changes.  The Client 
also agrees to include in any contracts for construction appropriate language that prohibits the 
Contractor or any subcontractors of any tier from making any changes or modifications to CPL's 
construction documents, including electronic files, without the prior written approval of CPL and 
that further requires the Contractor to indemnify both CPL and the Client from any liability or cost 
arising from such changes made without such proper authorization. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Park Conceptual Design Services Proposal 
 City of Auburn 

February 28, 2025 
Page 7 of 7 

APPENDIX ‘B’ 
CPL HOURLY RATES  

 
 

BILLING ROLE  BILLING RATE  
Principal Architect/Engineer/Planner  $             270.00  
Principal Consultant  $             180.00  
Project Manager  $             180.00  
Senior Planner  $             165.00  
Senior Architect  $             165.00  
Senior Engineer MEP  $             165.00  
Senior Landscape Architect  $             165.00  
Senior Engineer Civil/Structural  $             150.00  
Senior Interior Designer  $             150.00  
Planner  $             135.00  
Project Architect  $             135.00  
Project Engineer MEP  $             135.00  
Project Engineer Civil/Structural  $             120.00  
Resident Observer  $             120.00  
Interior Designer  $             105.00  
Junior Planner  $               90.00  
Junior Engineer  $               90.00  
Junior Draftsperson  $               90.00  
Clerical | Administrative  $               75.00  
Municipal Services 

 

Building Plans Examiner  $             150.00  
Building Inspector  $             135.00  
Building Official  $             135.00  
Senior Code Enforcement Officer  $             120.00  
Soil and Erosion Control Supervisor  $             120.00  
Soil and Erosion Control Inspector  $             105.00  
Permit Technician  $              75.00  

 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM: H 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Council 
 
FROM:    Michael Parks, City Administrator  
 
DATE: April 4, 2025 
 
 
PURPOSE:  To discuss a new road extension and sidewalks to improve connectivity 
 
BACKGROUND:  To enhance connectivity between the municipal complex and the 
downtown area. This proposed project would provide direct access to essential 
community services, including the school, post office, and doctor’s office, benefiting 
both residents and businesses. 

Key Benefits of the Road Extension: 

• Improved Accessibility: The new road and sidewalks would create a more direct 
and efficient route, reducing travel time for residents, emergency services, and 
public transportation. The sidewalks would allow for an alternative for those who 
walk or bike.  

• Enhanced Safety: By alleviating congestion on existing roads, the project would 
improve pedestrian and vehicular safety, particularly for school children and 
senior citizens accessing essential services. 

• Economic and Community Growth: Increased accessibility can support local 
businesses and encourage further development in the downtown area. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: The proposed project will require discussion with the 
adjacent landowner and school system. Recommend continuing discussions to 
determine the feasibility of the proposed project.  
 
FUNDING: LRA, TSPLOST 
 
ATTACHMENTS: College St. Extension and Topo  

MAYOR 
Rick E. Roquemore 
 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR   
Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel III 

                 Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 
 



© 2025 Microsoft Corporation © 2025 Maxar ©CNES (2025) Distribution Airbus DS 

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

E

SHEET

Civil Engineering
Land Planning
Landscape Architecture

Water Resources
Property Services
Arborist Services

50 Warm Springs Circle
Roswell    Georgia    30075

(770)641-1942    www.aecatl.com

NO
.

REV
ISIO

NS
DA

TE

CO
PYR

IGH
T B

Y A
EC

, IN
C.

PROJECT  NO.:  25-5184
CIVIL DRAWN BY:  DWW
CIVIL DESIGNED BY:  DWW
LANDSCAPE DRAWN BY:
LANDSCAPE DESIGNED BY:
CHECKED BY:
DATE -

C
O

LL
EG

E 
ST

R
EE

T
EX

T
EN

SI
O

N
C

IT
Y

 O
F 

A
U

BU
R

N
, G

EO
R

G
IA

C4.0

SI
T

E 
LA

Y
O

U
T

 P
LA

N

0

Scale 1" = 20'

402020

NORTH

Know what'sbelow.
before you dig.Call

R

Dial 811 or Call 1-800-282-7411

Utilities Protection Center, Inc.

SIGN LEGEND
LEGEND

#

AutoCAD SHX Text
1026

AutoCAD SHX Text
1034

AutoCAD SHX Text
1034

AutoCAD SHX Text
1032

AutoCAD SHX Text
1032

AutoCAD SHX Text
1030

AutoCAD SHX Text
1030

AutoCAD SHX Text
1028

AutoCAD SHX Text
1028

AutoCAD SHX Text
1026

AutoCAD SHX Text
1026

AutoCAD SHX Text
1024

AutoCAD SHX Text
1022

AutoCAD SHX Text
1024

AutoCAD SHX Text
1022

AutoCAD SHX Text
1020

AutoCAD SHX Text
1020

AutoCAD SHX Text
1018

AutoCAD SHX Text
1018

AutoCAD SHX Text
1016

AutoCAD SHX Text
1016

AutoCAD SHX Text
1014

AutoCAD SHX Text
1012

AutoCAD SHX Text
227

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1034.82

AutoCAD SHX Text
1100

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1038.09

AutoCAD SHX Text
1101

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
1041.74

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' BARBED WIRE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANGLE IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' BARBED WIRE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F E. HOWARD HAWTHORNE PARCEL AU11 068A DB 575, PG 110 PB 51, PG 215

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANGLE IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' BARBED WIRE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F E. HOWARD HAWTHORNE PARCEL AU11 068A DB 575, PG 110 PB 51, PG 215

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANGLE IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' BARBED WIRE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N/F E. HOWARD HAWTHORNE PARCEL AU11 068A DB 575, PG 110 PB 51, PG 215

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANGLE IRON

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
60.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
26.0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' CONC. SIDEWALK W/2' LANDSCAPE STRIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
"STOP" R1-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
BC BACK OF CURB BACK OF CURB BS BUILDING SETBACK BUILDING SETBACK B.S.L. BUILDING SETBACK LINE BUILDING SETBACK LINE C&G  CURB AND GUTTER CURB AND GUTTER C. CONCRETE CONCRETE FC FACE OF CURB FACE OF CURB H/C HANDICAP HANDICAP L LEVEL/LANDING LEVEL/LANDING L/A  LANDSCAPE AREA LANDSCAPE AREA LS LANDSCAPE SETBACK LANDSCAPE SETBACK R RAMP RAMP R.O.W. RIGHT OF WAY RIGHT OF WAY S/W SIDEWALK SIDEWALK TYP. TYPICALTYPICAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FENCE (FROM AUBURN CITY HALL PROJECT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETACHED SINGLE FAMILY HOME SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONDITIONS PRIOR TO AUBURN CITY HALL PROJECT (FROM SURVEY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PREVIOUSLY PERMITTED CONDITIONS AUBURN CITY HALL PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED CONDITIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE





AGENDA ITEM: I 

TO: Mayor and Council 

FROM:   James Aton, Hussey Gay Bell, Water Engineer 

DATE: April 4, 2025 

PURPOSE:  Pay Interest on Drinking Water Treatment Plant Construction 
Phase Bridge Loan 

BACKGROUND: The construction of the Drinking Water Treatment Plant 
(DWTP) was funded by two loans from Georgia Environmental Finance Authority 
(GEFA): WS13L01WR ($7,348,100) and GF2023003 ($11,440.800).  GEFA 
interrupted processing draws against loan GF2023003 during the transition 
between the loans until certain paperwork was completed.  Heavy Constructors 
provided the City of Auburn with a Construction Phase Bridge Loan to avoid 
interruption to the construction of the DWTP while the paperwork issue was 
resolved.  Provisions for such a Construction Phase Bridge Loan were included in 
the Guaranteed Maximum Price Contract (GMP) for the DWTP.  The cost of the 
bridge loan is $667,325.05 to be paid out of the Owner Contingency.  The 
Guaranteed Maximum Price for the DWTP remains $16,035,193 unchanged. 

RECOMMENDATION: To approve Change Order #3 to the Heavy 
Constructors’ agreement to pay the cost of the bridge loan out of the Owners 
Contingency, $667,325.05.   

FUNDING: Pay the cost of the Bridge Loan out of the owner’s contingency, 
$1,622,030, within the Guaranteed Maximum Price, $16,035,193.  GMP is paid 
using existing GEFA loans WS13L01 and GF2023003.  The GMP does not 
change. 

ATTACHMENTS: Change Order #3 and associated supporting documents. 

MAYOR 
Rick E. Roquemore 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 
Michael E. Parks 

CITY COUNCIL 
Robert L. Vogel III 

          Taylor J. Sisk 
Jamie L. Bradley 

Joshua Rowan 














	CITY OF AUBURN
	April 10, 2025
	6:00 PM

	INVOCATION
	PLEDGE
	1. Rezoning of 100 Lyle Road and 0 Main Street - Sarah McQuade
	NEW BUSINESS
	2. Consent Agenda
	VOTING ITEMS
	MAYOR Richard E. Roquemore
	CITY ADMINISTRATOR Michael E. Parks
	e. Council Advisory Cover sheet.pdf
	MAYOR
	Rick E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks


	3.27.2025  April Safe Digging Month.pdf
	MAYOR Richard E. Roquemore
	Michael E. Parks


	Cover sheet.pdf
	MAYOR
	Rick E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks


	College St. - Agenda Item .pdf
	Key Benefits of the Road Extension:
	MAYOR
	Rick E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks


	College Street Extension - Concept with Aerial RW trim - 2-28-25.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout (3)


	Cover sheet.pdf
	MAYOR
	Rick E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks


	March 13 2025 Business meeting Minutes.pdf
	MAYOR
	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	CITY COUNCIL
	Council Reports and Announcements
	Second: By Council Member Rowan.


	March 13, 2025 Special Called Meeting.pdf
	MAYOR
	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	CITY COUNCIL

	March 27, 2025 Special Called Meeting.pdf
	MAYOR
	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	CITY COUNCIL

	March 27, 2025 Council Workshop Minutes.pdf
	Council Reports and Announcements

	3. Coversheet Planning & Zoning Report.pdf
	MAYOR
	Rick E. Roquemore

	CITY ADMINISTRATOR
	Michael E. Parks





